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Title : Discussion regarding issues arising out of Prime Minister's recent visit to foreign countries.

MADAM SPEAKER: The House shall now take up Discussion under Rule 193. Shri Yashwant Sinha.

...(Interruptions)
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"Firstly, we have to galvanize the international community into dealing with sternly and effectively with the
epicentre of terrorism which is located in Pakistan.

Lk,

The infrastructure of terrorism has to be dismantled permanently. The Prime Minister also informed the House
that he had told several Heads of State and Government who had called him up that India would not be satisfied
with only assurances. He said the use of terrorism as an instrument of State policy is no longer acceptable."

These are not my words, Madam; these are the words of the Prime Minister of India. 38 &G on July 16, the Prime Minister
met the President of Pakistan, President Zardari, in Yekaterinburg and admonished him in the hearing of the whole world. He
told him:

"I am happy to meet you, but my mandate is limited to telling you that the territory of Pakistan must not be allowed
to be used for terrorism against India."

Strong words; we all felt very proud of our Prime Minister; here was our Prime Minister, fresh from his victory at the polls,
confident, assertive, ready to tell Pakistan and the rest of the world, "Do not mess around with us". That was the message that
he had conveyed, and we felt proud that the Prime Minister had conveyed this message on behalf of the whole country.
...(Interruptions)

SHRI J.M. AARON RASHID (THENI): Itis a feather in the cap of the hon. Prime Minister.
SHRI YASHWANT SINHA (HAZARIBAGH): | will praise him whenever he deserves praise.

In less than a month, at Sharm-el-Sheikh, there was a complete turnaround from this stated position, and a Joint Statement
was issued. In the Joint Statement, there are many points, and | would like to take them by one by one which stand out. U]

&1 fag &,
"They considered the entire gamut of bilateral relations with a view to charting the way forward in India-Pakistan
relations. [| emphasize the words entire gamut of bilateral relations.]

Second, both leaders agreed that terrorism is the main threat to both countries.



Third, Prime Minister Singh reiterated the need to bring the perpetrators of the Mumbai attack to justice. Prime
Minister Gilani assured that Pakistan will do everything in this regard.

Fourth, Prime Minister Gilani mentioned that Pakistan has some information on threats in Balochistan and other
areas.

Fifth, both Prime Ministers recognized that dialogue is the only way forward. Action on terrorism should not be
linked to the composite dialogue process and these should not be bracketed."[r3]

The sixth point is, the Prime Minister Singh said that India was ready to discuss all issues with Pakistan including all
outstanding issues. Seventh point is, the Prime Minister Singh reiterated India's interest. Please note that the Prime Minister
Singh reiterated India's interest in a stable, democratic, Islamic, Republic of Pakistan. And finally, both leaders agreed that the
two countries will share real time-credible, actionable information on any future threats. Both Foreign Secretaries will meet as
often as necessary and report to the Foreign Ministers who will meet on the sidelines of the forthcoming UN General
Assembly.

Now, let us take up these issues from the Joint Statement that | have just placed before you. The first is, the two Prime
Ministers discussed the entire gamut of bilateral relations. It was not merely confined to cross border terrorism. It was not
merely confined to holding Pakistan guilty of the acts of terrorism that it has unleashed on our sacred soil. We discussed, the
Prime Minister discussed the whole gamut of bilateral relations. So, the whole thing was expanded. Secondly, when we say
that both leaders agreed that terrorism is the main threat to both countries, then they put India and Pakistan at par. The
distinction between the aggressor and the victim was obliterated, completely obliterated because we are both victims of
terrorism. So, where is the question of being the perpetrator of terrorism and where is the question of being the victim of
terrorism? Then Pakistan gave the assurance that it would do all within its power to bring the perpetrators of the Mumbai
attacks to justice. We know that the Home Minister of Pakistan has said that they have absolutely no evidence against Hafiz
Saeed of Jammat-ud-Dawa. | heard our own distinguished Home Minister tell the television channels today that we have given
enough evidence to Pakistan to prosecute Hafiz Saeed and yet the Pakistan Home Minister says that India has given no
evidence, they have freed Hafiz Saeed, there is nothing pending against Hafiz Saeed. The mastermind of the Mumbai attack
has been let loose by Pakistan. No action is being taken against him. And we say that they will take all the action which is
necessary.

Now | come to Balochistan. Now why on earth was Balochistan included? We have nothing to hide. Yes, of course, we
have nothing to hide. We have nothing to hide, Madam, on many other issues. So, shall we put all those issues in a bilateral
document where we have nothing to hide? Is this an argument that if we have nothing to hide, we will put it in the bilateral
document? | was going through some of the newspaper reports just now because the Pakistanis now, at the official level, at the
level of their Home Minister and the Prime Minister have started talking about Balochistan no sooner did the ink dry on this joint
statement. And today, the Pakistani Home Minister has said that Pakistan will use the Balochistan reference to the hilt. He said
that evidence of Indian involvement in Balochistan would be presented at international forums at the appropriate time. And they
have seriously accused India of supplying arms to the Baluchs. They have accused India of using our Consulates in
Afghanistan to train them and give the money and arms. This is the allegation, Madam, that Pakistan has been raising ever
since those Consulates in Afghanistan were established.[SR4] My distinguished colleague the former Foreign Minister Mr.
Jaswant Singh is here. It was during his time that decision was taken that we would establish these four Consulates in
Afghanistan. Since then Pakistan has been uncomfortable. | would like to tell the House, through you Madam, as Foreign
Minister of India | travelled to Afghanistan and spent not two hours but two days in Afghanistan, and saw with my own eyes the
kind of respect that the people of Afghanistan have for India. You have to go there to see this very palpable respect and love.
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"When Pakistani and Indian leaders met in Egypt on 16! July, Prime Minister Yusuf Raza Gilani handed over an
inteligence dossier to his Indian counterpart Manmohan Singh outlining India's alleged role in destabilising
Pakistan from Afghanistan. This included funding and training of Balooch militants for the separatist insurgency
in Balochistan province, and providing support for the Pakistan Taliban, in particular its leader Baitulla Mehsud."
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THE PRIME MINISTER (DR. MANMOHAN SINGH): | can categorically say no such dossier was ever given to me.

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA (HAZARIBAGH): | am happy. We will rather believe our own Prime Minister than any journalist. |
raised this issue only because | wanted the Prime Minister to get up and state in this House that no such dossier has been
given and we will say that the issue stands settled for the time being here.

SHRI PINAKI MISRA (PURI): Indeed, no such dossier exists. That is the point.[KMR5]

[r6]
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FrafSe ST foleh =8 81T In fact, the joint Statement says that they will not be linked and goes on to emphasise

that they will not be bracketed. GsIRT 38 STl H O/ o Fer f 'all issues and all outstanding issues' 38l Rg gl 3 They
will not be linked and they will not be bracketed. Now, | have heard, because the spin doctors of the Government had been at
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3rliade §ANT & IR that the 'K’ word did not occur. Si8T #IY 3Fla#e g IR A 33CEETST SRy AT folar g2 With
all humility | would like to ask the Prime Minister of India, the Prime Minister of the democratic, socialist, secular republic of
India, why did he agree to call Pakistan, the Islamic Republic of Pakistan? Is India committed to islamisation of Pakistan?

el IR TfeheclleT dlel e dF Y, we will become secular ...(CTIERA)
MADAM SPEAKER: please sit down.
...(Interruptions)

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA : s India committed, is India interested in Pakistan remaining Islamic all the time? ST Hdeld %"7
And, this is a statement, this sentence is not a joint statement, coming from the Prime Minister of India. 38 dd H AR &
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MADAM SPEAKER: Please sit down.
a€| (Interruptions) [r7]
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"It is a great diplomatic victory for Pakistan."

| heard it with my own ears. He came out and said that it was a great diplomatic victory for Pakistan. He interpreted the Joint
Statement to mean that India had agreed to revive the composite dialogue process. FFIﬁ' QUTHET S o & hel Sid T
-9 7 AR & el ARG AR SR TFEr o7 AT P dIfhedlialdl o ofig of forr g, 3T of afzar &
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"Unless and until the terrorism is tackled and terror infrastructure dismantled, | will not be able to carry public
opinion with me."

You are absolutely right Mr. Prime Minister. The public opinion in India will not be with you unless you hold Pakistan to these
two issues — terrorism must end and the infrastructure of terrorism must be destroyed in Pakistan for ever. I Oe PO g I,
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"No, no. This is only a diplomatic paper and not a legal document. Dismiss it as a diplomatic paper."[r8]

This was a Joint Statement. Ig R Tgel of $fcT 715 A, Afehel 3T STl 6, 2004 & 38 THee & GFTs &l &, o
eIeT FHAY, sﬁmﬁmﬂmﬂﬁr%ws&ggmm S 98 STAHEIE T A & T T A Let me remind
him that this was only a Joint Press Statement. It was not even a Joint Statement. What was issued in Islamabad on January
06, 2004wasaJointPressStatement}ﬁTmm@r@fwmgﬁéﬁ%’, SIS HeT YT HAT S A e T,
old 3F€I?f ohel Pakistan's territory should not be allowed to be used. What was the language? That language was in that
January 06, 2004 statement. ST Jg el §U IGAN gl TR Tl derRell =1 &gl fh I 83 giftcar & 3R #Aeer
g W AG T, 3oaiel Fal S5 sﬁ%w , These things happen. Bad drafting and these things happen; it is not a legal
document; it is only a diplomatic paper.?—ﬂ'ﬁ dlgdl Eﬁ'? IR 30 3H Hced H 3T T & ﬁ?éﬂﬂﬁ‘r oA, 33'33
gifeaT &l

3-HG{TS%§3-]T St ofr aRFEAfT o ST el Al & &1 ST 3673 &, H 3l gl TG T S g
A ¥ 3R TR o @ AR A ¥ O IUe I AR A @ Sl gIFe N AR el o foIw g wF
ST ST ¥ W & Ueh-Ueh eq ol ST Sl g1 g & A, Pol T el &, 38 o @ oiiel § 3R ¢ At
R T ¢l o dG & IUC FeAABST gl ¢l IR fFT Re 3e 71| Foy R 31@eR 7 Jar, iR 9T 3o &
R, B A8, 7, 96 A A g T Fo T F AU P, 366 a5 Qe I & R afd # gore w@r
& el & T AN @ S ¥, 3 3§ X gue AW oF 3R & T it ke o doaw it v W@ R
F ST gl A, T G G Mol Sl AT A W@ 3R 386 §Ig Ighd I0A-30 WAdew g fomrr
amsﬂ'\raasrq—tmﬁaﬁzﬂ?rrl T A Y 2004 % IO W FO ITHA § 3N H 57 FeoT A TR & Ay
FgeTl TRA & foh ST S0 Rg o FiSeiol T AT 3ol [WgRT drolddl o AT 3RT o 3oglel Ueh-Ueh olldel, Th-Udh




orE UeT 3R 36 9 3G e ToRe | %—@Wﬂgﬂ%%qﬁammﬁmm
W @ A, 3egieT gl [ 3R J T A& A, &7 9l & STAHEG & ST o T & @ A1 3R 9 74,
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁwﬁ:ménﬁﬁﬁws&ummaﬁmﬁmmm FS T A g o ;S

el S @ P TRy %%Rm%mﬂé@ﬁﬁaﬁﬁaﬂ?mwaﬁm%m@aﬁﬁ
S G T EH APl o 3ERT Wﬂﬁmlﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂmﬁg@mﬂﬁﬁmm
SRY 7T B9 aF WeIleT #HAT S o &gl | am prepared to walk more than half the

distance. | am saying he has walked all the way.* He has gone to the Pakistani camp and acted exactly as they said. Where is
the half way? ...(Interruptions)

3TeT FRICT, H TR FgeAl TET § ...(STIUA)

MADAM SPEAKER: Hon. Member, you may take your seat for a minute. There is a point of order.

SHRI ADHIR CHOWDHURY (BAHARAMPUR): Madam Speaker, | would like to quote Rule 353 of the Rules of Procedure and
Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha. It says:
"No allegation of a defamatory or incriminatory nature shall be made by a Member against any person unless the
Member has given (adequate advance notice) to the Speaker and also to the Minister concerned so that he
Minister may be able to make an investigation into the matter for the purpose of a reply:"[R9][BS10

s11
HsH, I8 F8 W & & ...(Interruptions) * TITREAT 3 Tell ITAT, UIfehEdleT 3 it ST T@T &7 It should be deleted.
MADAM SPEAKER: Hon. Member, | have to look into it. You have made your point.
...(Interruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: Shri Sinha, please continue.

...(Interruptions)

A Terda Reer : 3reweT FeAT, H 0 AH W G ST ¥ g, Falel el =l gl

...(Interruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: | will look into it.
...(Interruptions)

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA : | want to put some questions to the hon. Prime Minister and | hope he will be good enough to
answer them. The first question is this. Firstly, has the trust deficit between India and Pakistan, after the

* Expunged as ordered by the Chair.

Joint Statement and meeting, widened or narrowed? Secondly, what changed between 16! June, when he met President

Zardari, and 16! July, when he met Prime Minister Gilani at Sharm El Sheik? What has brought about this complete change
of heart? What has happened? Thirdly, Pakistan has already gone to town on Baluchistan. But the Prime Minister has said
that there was no dossier given. So, | am not asking that question. Then, what are the achievements of the anti-terror
mechanism set up after 2006 in Havana? The Prime Minister has said it in his Joint Statement of 41" April, 2005. It was a
ringing statement saying that the peace process between India and Pakistan was now irreversible. Does he stand by it now,
that the peace process between India and Pakistan is irreversible and that they will go on doing what they like? T o g
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IR HQIGHT, TUAHAT S o IRRG Hed & o A, g8 8 1| RS Aed o Tsguid &, Iogiel Th Gckh
fORAT - "In the Line of Fire". 39 o J&dsh Fr gfed| As President of Pakistan, he is writing that book and let me tell you,
when | went through that book, the feeling that he has about India. AR 3eTehl ?E:[ axr %’I o éo-s\i o O e 9T folar
t & 9Ra sArr HEL SAE I gave them a bloody nose here; Kargil was a great success. 319 S8 Rg & el T ST W

E & ..(STaue)

MADAM SPEAKER: Whatever is unparliamentary in the hon. Member's speech may be deleted.

...(Interruptions)

A FeEd Reer ; 3T AR, H TUAF SN T TE Feoll TR § O SN AW F g3 &, WAl T H
Ul Sehgl ek 3R 38 AT & Ul o SR §H oI T ol 9 W A8 Yol dTel g1 All the waters of Neptune will
not wash away the shame of Sharm-el-Sheikh....(Interruptions) 31&T8T FgIGaT, 34T 2'3' H E§F1' T ael o forar g1 oifehet
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efAg 's'%'«’ZIT hal %’I EF?ET 3 ?ﬁ e for@r %’ f& "As a result of the surrender at Sharm-el- Sheikh, the impression has
gone out that India is negotiable” This is what they have said.
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o FE & "Are you mildly concerned? Are you casually concerned if you are not totally concerned? Are you moderately
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MADAM SPEAKER: Do not interrupt. Please sit down.

AN FeEd Reer : FRe, ﬁagmamgﬁ;ﬁaar;ﬁﬁﬁrsa?ﬁmaﬁ A HH AT H, TG AR &
sfdera 3 FIT AGT §7§ & that within such a short period of time, we have piled up one mistake after another. | do not know
where the foreign policy of India today is.

SHRI P.C. CHACKO (THRISSUR): Madam Speaker, we have been waiting with great attention and interest that the senior
leader of the main Opposition Party, an experienced foreign policy expert and former External Affairs Minister, will throw some
light on the issue which we are discussing.

Madam, | must say that Yashwant Sinha Ji, with all his experience and information in his hands and the articulation, could not
prove the point which he was arguing. He has been always an expert in arguing weak cases but today he has miserably failed
in his attempt.

| feel that, at least, he will justify his own Party's programme of Padyatra from Parliament to Rashtrapati Bhavan yesterday.
We thought that he would be able to justify that Padyatra. Not only that Yashwant Sinha Ji has disappointed this whole House
but he has disappointed his own Party men. | have been watching the faces of his colleagues sitting at the back and the pale
of gloom on the faces of his colleagues is an ample proof that Yashwant Sinha Ji could not even convince his own Party
colleagues.

Madam, | legitimately expected that like Mr. Jaswant Singh, the other day, had complimented our Finance Minister, after these
allegations which they have to do as a ritual to justify their stand, finally he will come out with, at least, a word of compliment to
our hon. Prime Minister. Even that he did not do. | am really sorry about it.

Madam, he has seen some cracks in the pillars on the Metro Rail here, which we have all seen. He has seen some cracks in
our foreign policy pillars also, which none of us are able to see those cracks in the foreign policy pillars...(Interruptions)
Madam, there was something which also | will tell them and if they are interested they should patiently listen to it.

Madam, the foreign policy pillars of this country were not shaken when the hon. Prime Minister went to Sharm-el-Sheikh but
when the former Prime Minister went in a bus from here to Lahore. When he reached Lahore, at that point of time, our foreign
policy pillars were shaking because in Kargil the Pakistani soldiers were infiltrating into India.

Madam, he has rightly said that Mumbai Attack was an attack on the sovereignty of India. Yes, we do agree. That was
reiterated in clear terms by the Prime Minister in this Joint Statement — | will read that wording later. But Madam, there was
another attack, which we, sitting here in this House, cannot forget. This happened in 2001 when Shri Atal Bihari Vajpayee was



the Prime Minister of this country.[RS14] Hon. Advani ji was the Home Minister of this country. This very citadel of the Indian
Parliament was attacked. ...(Interruptions) 1t is good to remember Bombay. We will always remember
Bombay...(Interruptions)

MADAM SPEAKER: Please listen to him.

...(Interruptions)
SHRI P.C. CHACKO : But, when this Parliament was attacked...(/nterruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: Please sit down. Please listen to him.

...(Interruptions)

SHRI P.C. CHACKO : As once said by our hon. Prime Minister, the lohpurush, the strong man of BJP, was sleeping when he
was the Home Minister and when this Parliament was attacked. It was an eye ball to eye ball fight. It was almost a war on India.

15.56 hrs.
(Shrimati Sumitra Mahajan in the Chair)

What happened after the Parliament attack? Then happened the Agra Summit. Yashwant Sinha jiis against any
dialogue with Pakistan. Is that the position of India? Is that the position of this country that we will not talk to Pakistan, we will
not talk to any other country? Sorry, Yashwant Sinha ji, that is not the position of this country. We are for the dialogue in the
country and your Prime Minister with all fanfare went to Agra for discussion. What happened there? President Musharraf
came to Agra. You hosted him and he was taken around Taj Mahal. The whole country was watching. He went back without
signing a joint declaration. He went back accusing India. That is what happened there. The Agra conclave was held in the
background of the attack on the Parliament. Please do not forget this. You may be quoting many instances; there are umpteen
instances we can quote that you never had the self-respect when you raised the issue with Pakistan. You were never bold
enough to speak to them in the language in which the Prime Minister is speaking. | would like to quote:

"Prime Minister Singh reiterated the need to bring the perpetrators of the Mumbai attacks to justice. Prime
Minister Gilani assured that Pakistan will do everything in its power in this regard. "

Has Pakistan ever agreed or ever come to these terms in the past? Can Yashwant Sinha ji tell us? Pakistan was always saying
that we have nothing to do with the Bombay attack. Pakistan was always saying that Kasab is not a citizen of Pakistan.
Pakistan was always saying: "Why should we bother about it? We have nothing; we are not going to do any inquiry." When
our Prime Minister said that the perpetrators of that crime should be brought to book, what was the reaction of Mr. Gilani?
Yashwant Sinha ji, you please accept, when the Prime Minister of this country talked in unmistakable terms, what is the
sentiment of this country? ...(Interruptions)

i AQEAT: T 39T & AT A Bered W W/ &l

...(Interruptions)

SHRI P.C. CHACKO : Madam Chairman, it is all the more interesting. They are speaking in the name of the
people...(Interruptions) Hon. Yashwant Sinha ji, the Spokesperson of the principal Opposition Party, | request the BJP
Members to at least see how they pick up courage to speak on behalf of the people. It is a party which even elected a Prime
Minister before the election. No other party has ever elected a Prime Minister before the election. But they were outright
rejected by the people. Such a party is coming and is today speaking on behalf of the people. Here a Prime Minister is sitting
who was elected by the people.&€! (Interruptions)

I am not yielding. Here a Prime Minister is sitting who has got the support of the people of this country. There is a person who
spoke on behalf of the BJP which is a party rejected by the people. With what courage you are speaking on behalf of the
people?[R15

16.00 hrs.
So, please do not speak on behalf of the people; speak on behalf of you.

Madam, there were some instances. | am not going into the details. When the BJP Government went to discuss with the



President Musharaf in Agra, those days there was an interesting inside story in the BJP. Madam Chairperson, you may also
be knowing about that. The Home Minister of this country was not aware of what was going to happen in Agra. That was the
talk in those days. Shri Advani's view was that he was not aware of what was happening in Agra. Finally, insulting this country,
Musharaf went from Agra issuing a statement against this country. These are all facts. ...(Interruptions)

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA : Shri Advani was present in Agra at that time. 379 T &Il 3§ &1...(CTTH)

T AT : 31T 3T 31T 39 ersH W AT
..(CTGE)

MADAM CHAIRMAN : Shri Chacko, you will have to conclude now.

...(Interruptions)

SHRI P.C. CHACKO : Madam, please tell them not to disturb me. Even senior Members are disturbing me. What to do?
...(Interruptions)

I now come to the point about the composite dialogue; that is the main point which Shri Yashwant Sinha was explaining. About
the dialogue, our position is that we are for the dialogue. As to when the composite dialogue should start, we have made it very
clear. It should not be linked to the composite dialogue; that is what they have complained. 'Linked to the composite dialogue’
means what? Madam, one can have a simple reading and even a reading between the lines It is not that Shri Yashwant Sinha
ji cannot understand this. He is distorting and misleading this House. Madam, what is happening is that whether there is
dialogue or no dialogue, we want Pakistan to take action. That is the meaning of this sentence. We want Pakistan immediately
to proceed with anti-terrorism actions. Against terrorism, any action cannot wait. Pakistan should take action against terrorism.
So, we want Pakistan to take action against terrorism. India and Pakistan have jointly declared that every step will be taken by
both the countries against terrorism. That means, the composite dialogue will take place at some point of time. We will decide
the time; we have to decide and we will decide when we start the dialogue. At the same time, we are for the dialogue. This is
made very clear.

Madam, you see the action taken by Pakistan. Pakistan initially refused to admit that it is their citizen who created the problem
in Mumbai. Now, you see what they have done. Madam, there is a diplomatic success of the Prime Minister and the Foreign
Minister of this country. Why do they not admit that? Shri Yashwant Sinha is a former External Affairs Minister and also a
former bureaucrat.

Madam, what is happening in this field? Pakistan has arrested five terrorists who had links with the Mumbai incident. Those
terrorists are going to put to trial in Pakistan. We are not happy and we are not satisfied with that. Our Prime Minister has told
Pakistan in unambiguous terms that you book everyone with this incident of Mumbai, until then we are not happy. Now, the
process has started. Pakistan is on the defensive. Till now, they were saying that Pakistan has nothing to do with that. Now,
they have admitted and said: "Yes, Kasab is a citizen of Pakistan. We have booked five of them. We are continuing with the
inquiry." Whose success it is? Shri Yashwant Sinha should say that.

Madam, the then BJP Government could not even achieve one-tenth of what this Government is achieving today. Madam, at
the same time, | still want to reiterate that India has got a position; India has got a very firm position. For your information, |
want to say that India will go for the composite dialogue only when Pakistan is taking concrete action to book all the culprits
behind the incident in Mumbai to the satisfaction of this country. It is our prerogative to fix the time for the composite dialogue,
and we will decide that.

Madam, there is some very interesting reference that is being made; a reference about Baluchistan. Shri Yashwant Sinha has
said that a reference about Baluchistan has never been mentioned in the Statement in the history of this country. He said that
after the discussion, the Statement has mentioned about Baluchistan, and this he said as if the whole sky is going to fall down;
he wanted to know why Baluchistan has been mentioned in that.

Madam, Baluchistan is an internal affair of Pakistan. If Pakistan wants to mention about Baluchistan, why should we oppose
it? | do not understand the logic of his argument. He also said that Kashmir should not be a part of an international dialogue
and discussion. [H16] It is our internal affair. We fought it like anything. | think, Yashwant Sinhaji also might have taken that
line when he was holding responsible positions, that Pakistan cannot be mentioned in an international document. We did not
allow Kashmir to be mentioned in this document. But Balochistan is mentioned in this document. Okay; it is Pakistan's internal
affair. If it is brought into the text, it is not going to affect us in anyway. We have not contributed; we have not talked with
them. It is not binding on us. If the Pakistani Prime Minister feels that he has some information about Balochistan, okay, let



him give us the information. Let whatever information may come. We condemned terrorism in any form, in any part of the
world perpetuated by anybody in unmistakable terms. That is the message of this text.

At the same time, merely mentioning Balochistan is not everything. Who is teaching us lessons on patriotism? | am sorry -
before also | said it in this House — that the then External Affairs Minister of the BJP-led Government escorted a dreaded
terrorist in a special flight to Kandahar...(/nterruptions)

How soon do you forget this? Shahnawaz Hussainji, how can you forget it?a€! (Interruptions) The people would never forget
it...(Interruptions) After the attack on our Parliament, you were celebrating in Agra! After you escorted a dreaded terrorist to
Kandahar, now you are blaming the Congress! Please, we do not need any lesson from the BJP on patriotism.

Madam, it was raised as to why the hon. Prime Minister has agreed that Pakistan is an Islamic country. It is very interesting.
According to the Constitution of Pakistan, Pakistan is an Islamic Republic...(/nterruptions) You may agree; you may not agree
but that is part of the history.

Yashwant Sinhaji, do not find fault with anything and everything. You are a senior person. We still respect you for certain
things. Only you are a convert to BJP; you are not originally a BJP man...(/nterruptions) How can you find fault with each and
everything?

Madam, what is happening in the neighbourhood? Our relations with Bangladesh, our relations with Bhutan, our relations with
Nepal, our relations with China, our relations with Sri Lanka are cordial. In and around -- you were also sitting in that Chair --
what is the position today? What we achieved in the last 365 days, you would not have achieved even one-tenth of that in 10
years time - | can challenge you...(Interruptions)

About the Statement, | am happy and | am thankful to you that you have raised this issue. You made an exercise in vain, doing
a Padyatra from here to Rashtrapati Bhavan. Hon. Rashtrapatiji might be very much amused that you had made this
representation. But you cannot befool the people of this country. You may try. You may still go on trying ...(Interruptions)

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA : Please, do not bring Rashtrapatiji here...(Interruptions)

SHRI P.C. CHACKO : But in the recent General Elections also, after having this verdict, if you are not convinced, nobody can
help you. Even God cannot help you because you do not know the psychology of the people of this country...(Interruptions)

Madam, the core issue is that we want to see that Pakistan behaves as a responsible nation. We have made it very clear to
Pakistan that Pakistan should behave properly. | cannot think of a better wording. They said about poor drafting, good drafting,
etc. Those who were good draftsmen in the past can say that, but today, this is containing the exact warning that India should
give to our neighbours when they are misbehaving. We want them to behave. That is the message given to them.

This Statement is only a routine thing. Indeed, in such international meetings, joint statements are being issued. There is
nothing new in it. But we are happy that a Statement has come out. We are happy that Pakistan has agreed to their
responsibility. We are happy that Pakistan has agreed— whether they would do it or not, is a matter to be
seen...(Interruptions) Composite dialogue is an agenda for the future. We would decide the timing.

Action against terrorism is an immediate issue, which we have already said. They are making a hill out of a mole. They are
trying to create a wrong impression. They are trying to distort. They are trying to create a misunderstanding among the
people. | think, at this late hour, the BJP would realize their folly and they would withdraw from this kind of misleading
campaign.

With these words, | conclude.
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THE PRIME MINISTER (DR. MANMOHAN SINGH): Madam, Speaker, | am very grateful to Shri Yashwant Sinha, Shri
Mulayam Singhji, Shri Sharad Yadavji for their comments on the Joint Statement that was issued after Sharm-el-Sheikh and
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also for what | said in the G-8 meetings in Italy. | will cover all the points and clarify all the issues. [R23
17.00 hrs.

Madam Speaker, as | have said many times before, we cannot wish away the fact that Pakistan is our neighbour. We
should be good neighbours. If we live in peace, as good neighbours do, both of us can focus our energies on many problems
that confront our people, our acute poverty which afflicts millions and millions of people in South Asia. If there is cooperation
between us, and not conflict, vast opportunities will open up for trade, travel and development that will create prosperity in both
countries.

It is, therefore, in our vital interest to make sincere efforts to live in peace with Pakistan. But despite the best of
intentions, we cannot move forward if terrorist attacks launched from Pakistani soil continue to kill and injure our citizens, here
and abroad. That is the national position and | stand by that.

Madam, | have said time and again and | repeat it right now again. It is impossible for any Government in India to work
towards full normalisation of relations with Pakistan unless the Government of Pakistan fulfils, in letter and spirit, its commitment
not to allow its territory to be used in any manner for terrorist activities against India.

This was a commitment, as my friend, Shri Yashwant Sinha mentioned, made to my distinguished predecessor, Shri
Atal Bihari Vajpayee, and it has been repeated to me in every meeting | have had with the Pakistani leadership. The people of
India expect these assurances to be honoured and this Government recognises that as the common national consensus.

Madam, the attack on Mumbai last November outraged our nation and cast a deep shadow over our relation with
Pakistan. The reality and the horror of it were brought into Indian homes over three traumatic days that still haunt us. The
people of India demand that this must never happen again.

Over the past seven months, we followed a policy, using all effective bilateral and multilateral instruments at our
command, to ensure that Pakistan acts, with credibility and sincerity, as we would expect of any civilized nation.

Soon after the attacks, the United Nations Security Council imposed sanctions on Lashkar-e-Toiba and its front
organisations, including the Jamaat-ud-Dawa. It also imposed sanctions on four individuals connected with the organisation,
including one of the masterminds behind the Mumbai attacks, Zaki-ur-Rehman Lakhvi.

We exercised great restraint under very difficult circumstances but made it clear that Pakistan must act. On 5th
January, 2009, we handed over to Pakistan the details of the links to Pakistan that were revealed by our investigators. Some
action followed and Pakistan formally responded to us on two occasions regarding the progress of their own investigations in
February 2009 and then just two days before my departure for Paris and Sharm-El-[U24]Sheikh.

The latest dossier is a 34-page document that gives the details of the planning and sequence of events, details of the
investigations carried out by the special Federal Investigation Agency Team of Pakistan, a copy of the FIR lodged, and the
details and photographs of the accused in custody and those declared as proclaimed offenders. It provides details of the
communication networks used, financing of the operation and seizures made in Pakistan, including maps, life boats, literature
on navigational training, intelligence manuals, back packs, etc. This is Pakistan's dossier supplied to us. It states that the
investigation has established beyond doubt that Lashkar-e-tiba activists conspired, financed and executed the attacks. Five of
the accused have been arrested, including Zaki-ur- Rehman Lakhvi and Zarar Shah; and thirteen others have been declared
proclaimed offenders. A charge sheet has since been filed against them under Pakistan's Anti Terrorism Act, and other
relevant laws.

We have been told that the investigations are nearly complete and that a trial will now proceed. We have also been asked for
some further information and we will provide this shortly.

This, Madam Speaker, is the first time that Pakistan has ever formally briefed us on the results of the investigation into a
terrorist attack in India. It has never happened before. This, | repeat, is the first time. It is also the first time that they have
admitted that their nationals and a terrorist organisation based in Pakistan carried out a ghastly terrorist attack in India.

Madam Speaker, the reality is that this is far more than the NDA Government was ever able to extract from Pakistan, despite all
their tall talks. This is true of the entire duration of the NDA regime. They were never able to get Pakistan to admit what they
have admitted now. So, | say with all respect to Shri Yashwant Sinha, that the UPA Government needs no lessons from the
Opposition on how to conduct foreign affairs or secure our nation against terrorist threats.

Madam Speaker, while noting the steps Pakistan has taken, | have to say that, they do not go far enough. We hope that the



trial will make quick progress and that exemplary punishment will be meted out to those who committed this horrific crime
against humanity. We need evidence that action is being taken to outlaw, disarm, and shut down the terrorist groups and their
front organisations that still operate on Pakistani soil and which continue to post a grave threat to our country.

Madam Speaker, in the final analysis the reality is that despite all the friends that we may have — and we wish to make as
many friends, as Shri Mulayam Singh ji said, as possible - the harsh reality of the modern world power structure is such that
when it comes to matters relating to our internal security and defence, we will have to depend on ourselves. Self-help is the
best help. There is no substitute to strengthening our defence capabilities, our national security structure and our emergency
response mechanism. | wish to assure the House that the Government is giving these matters the highest priority and
attention.[r25]

Several important steps have been taken to modernise, rationalise and strengthen our defence security and inteligence
apparatus. A detailed plan to address internal security challenges is being implemented in a time-bound manner. The
Government is maintaining utmost vigilance in the area of internal security. Measures have been taken to ensure enhanced
information and intelligence sharing on a real time basis. The policy of zero tolerance towards terrorism, from whatever source
it originates, has been put in place.

Madam, in the area of Defence, steps are underway to substantially improve our coastal and maritime security. Large
acquisitions of major weapon systems and platforms have been approved for the modernisation of our Army, Navy and Air
Force. There has been a special focus to improve the welfare of the Armed Forces personnel. We will spare no effort and no
expense to defend our nation against any threat to our sovereignty, unity and integrity. This is the sacred and bounden duty of
any Government of this great country.

Madam, Speaker, but we do not dilute our positions or our resolve to defeat terrorism by talking to any country. Other
major powers affected by Pakistan based terrorism are also engaging with Pakistan. Unless we talk directly to Pakistan, we will
have to rely on third parties to do so. This | submit to this august House that this particular route has very severe limitations as
to its effectiveness and for the longer term view of what South Asia should be, the growing involvement of foreign powers in the
affairs of South Asia is not something to our liking. | say, therefore, with strength and conviction that dialogue and engagement
is the best way forward. This has been the history of our relations with Pakistan over the last decade.

Shri Atal Bihari Vajpayee took a decision of political courage to visit Lahore in 1999. Then came Kargil and the hijacking of an
Indian Airlines plane to Kandahar. Yet, he invited General Musharraf to Agra and again tried to make peace. The nation
witnessed the terrible attack on Parliament in 2001. There followed an extremely difficult phase in our relationship. The Armed
Forces of the two countries stood fully mobilized. But to his great credit, Shri Vajpayee was not deterred, as a statesman
should not be. In 2004, he went to Islamabad, where a Joint Statement was issued that set out a vision for a cooperative
relationship. | must remind the House that the Opposition Parties supported those bold steps. | for one share Shri Vajpayee's
vision and | have also felt his frustration in dealing with Pakistan.

In my meetings with President Zardari in Yekaterinburg and with the Prime Minister Gilani in Sharm-El-Sheikh, |
conveyed in the strongest possible terms our concerns and expectations. | conveyed to them the deep anger and hurt of the
people of India due to the persistence of terrorist attacks on our people. | told them that the operations of all terrorist groups
that threaten India must end permanently. | urged them to make no distinctions between different terrorist organisations. [t26] |
said that it was not enough to say that Pakistan is itself a victim of terrorism. They must show the same political will and take
the same strong and sustained action against terrorist groups operating on their eastern border as they now seem to be taking
against the groups on their western border.

Both President Zardari and Prime Minister Gilani assured me that the Pakistan Government was serious and that
effective action would be taken against the perpetrators of the Mumbai carnage.

Shri Yashwant Sinha asked me what was the change between my meeting with President Zardari and later my meeting with
Prime Minister Gilani. In-between came the dossier which showed progress though not adequate progress of the type that |
had already indicated. He asked me: "Will you trust Pakistan?" Let me say that in the affairs of two neighbours, the best
approach is, what the late President Reagan once said: "trust but verify." We have no other way of moving forward unless we
want to go to war.

| was told by both President Zardari and Prime Minister

Gilani that Mumbai was the work of non-State actors. | said that this gave little satisfaction to us and that it was the duty of their
Government to ensure that such acts were not perpetrated from their territory. | told them that another attack of this kind would
put an intolerable strain on our relationship and that they must take all possible measures to prevent a recurrence.



Madam Speaker, after | returned from Sharm-el-Sheikh, | made a Statement in Parliament which clarified and elaborated not
just the Joint Statement issued following my meeting with Prime Minister Gilani but also what we discussed.

| wish to reiterate that the President and the Prime Minister of Pakistan know, after our recent meetings, that we can
have a meaningful dialogue with Pakistan only if they fulfil their commitment, in letter and spirit, not to allow their territory to be
used in any manner for terrorist activities against India. This message was repeated when the Foreign Ministers and the
Foreign Secretaries met.

| stand by what | have said in Parliament - that there has been no dilution of our position in this regard.

An interpretation has been sought to be given that the Statement says that we will continue to engage in a composite dialogue
whether Pakistan takes action against terrorism or not. This is not correct. The Joint Statement emphasised that action on
terrorism cannot be linked to dialogue. Pakistan knows very well that with terrorism being such a mortal and global threat, no
civilised country can set terms and conditions for rooting it out. It is an absolute and compelling imperative that cannot be
dependent on resumption of the composite dialogue. In the Joint Statement itself, the two sides have agreed to share real-time,
credible and actionable information on any future terrorist threats.

Madam Speaker, when | spoke to Prime Minister Gilani about terrorism from Pakistan, he mentioned to me that many
Pakistanis thought that India meddled in Balochistan. | told him that we have no interest whatsoever in destabilising Pakistan
nor do we harbour any ill intent towards Pakistan. We believe that a stable, peaceful and prosperous Pakistan living in peace
with its neighbours is in India's own interest. [R27]

| told him then and | say it here again that we are not afraid of discussing any issue of concern between the two countries. If
there are any misgivings, we are willing to discuss them and remove them. | told him that | had been told by the leadership of
Pakistan several times that Indian Consulates in Afghanistan were involved in activities against Pakistan. This is totally false.
We have had Consulates in Kandahar and Jalalabad for 60 years. Our Consulates perform normal diplomatic functions and
are assisting in the reconstruction of Afghanistan where we have a large aid programme that is benefiting the common people
of Afghanistan. But we are willing to discuss all these issues because we know that we are doing nothing wrong. | told Prime
Minister Gilani that our conduct is an open book. If Pakistan has any evidence — and they have not given me any evidence, no
dossier was ever supplied — we are willing to look at it because we have nothing to hide.

Madam Speaker, | sincerely believe that it is as much in Pakistan's interest as it is in ours to strive to make peace. Pakistan
must defeat terrorism before being consumed by it. | believe the current leadership there understands that. It may not be very
strong, but the impression that | have is that the current leadership understands the need for action. | was told by their
parliamentarians who accompanied Prime Minister Gilani that there is now a political consensus in Pakistan against terrorism.
That should strengthen the hands of its leadership in taking the hard decisions that will be needed to destroy terrorism and its
sponsors in their country.

Madam Speaker, our objective, as | said at the outset, must be a permanent peace with Pakistan where we are bound together
by a shared future and a common prosperity. | believe that there is a large constituency for peace in both countries. The
majority of people in both countries want an honourable settlement of the problems between us that have festered far too long
and want to set aside the animosities of the past. We know this, but in the past there have been hurdles in a consistent pursuit
of this path. As a result, the enemies of peace have flourished. They want to make our alienation permanent, the distance
between our two countries an unbridgeable divide. In the interest of our people and in the interest of the prosperity and peace
of South Asia, we must not let this happen. This is why | hope and pray that the leadership in Pakistan will have the strength
and the courage to defeat those who want to destroy not just peace between India and Pakistan, but the future of South Asia.
As | have said before, if they show that strength and that courage, we will meet them more than half the way.

There are uncertainties on the horizon. | cannot predict the future. But, as | said, in dealing with our neighbour, - two nuclear
powers — the only way forward is to begin to trust each other despite all that has happened in the past, not trust blindly, but
trust and verify. For the present, what is it that we have agreed? People have been saying that we have broken the national
consensus. | simply refuse to believe that we have broken any national consensus not to tolerate terrorism and that Pakistan
has to act and act effectively on terrorism before there can be a comprehensive dialogue covering all areas of disagreement
or concerns of the two countries.[KS28]

[RS29]For the present, all that we have agreed is that the two Foreign Secretaries will meet. The two Foreign Secretaries have
been meeting even before the Joint Statement. Further, we have agreed that the two Foreign Ministers will meet on the
sidelines of the General Assembly. The two Foreign Ministers have been meeting even before the Statement was issued. They
met recently in Trieste. | met President Zardari in Russia. | met Prime Minister Gilani even before this Statement. So, in
operational terms all that we have agreed is that there will be a meeting of Foreign Secretaries, as often as necessary,



followed by a meeting of the two Foreign Ministers on the sidelines of the General Assembly.

Does it involve a surrender of any position? Does it involve a weakening of a position? As neighbours, | sincerely believe that it
is our obligation to keep channels of communication open, look at what is happening in the world today.

America and Iran were sworn enemies for 30 years. But, now they feel compelled to enter into dialogue. This is
happening all over the world and unless we want to go to war with Pakistan, there is no other way but to go step by step; trust
but verify is the only possible way of dealing with Pakistan.

Madam, | now come to three other issues which hon. Yashwant Sinha Ji has raised. One relates to the end-use
monitoring arrangement we have made with the United States for Defence purchases. All Governments, Madam, including our
Government, are particular about end-uses to which exported Defence equipment and technologies are put to and for
preventing them from falling into wrong hands.

Since the late 1990s, the Governments of India and the United States have entered into end-use monitoring
arrangement for the import of US high-technology Defence equipment and supplies. These were negotiated before this
Agreement in each case by successive Governments of India. The Government has only accepted those arrangements which
are fully in consonance with our sovereignty and dignity.

What we have now agreed with the United States is a generic formulation which will apply to future such supplies that
India chooses to undertake. By agreeing to a generic formulation, we have introduced an element of predictability in what is
otherwise an ad-hoc case by case negotiation.

| should add that we need access to all technologies available in the world for the modernisation of our Defence forces.
The threats to our country are growing and we need to have the capability to deal with them and to be ahead of them. Our
Armed Forces are entitled to the best possible equipment available anywhere in the world. It is also in our interest, therefore, to
diversify to the maximum extent possible the sources of our imports of Defence items and equipment.

You have my assurance, Madam, and through you | wish to conwvey this to this august House that our Government has taken
all precautions to ensure an outcome that guarantees our sovereignty and national interest. Nothing in the text that has been
agreed to compromises India's sovereignty.[RS30] There is no provision — | repeat, there is no provision — for any unilateral
action by the United States side with regard to inspection or related matters. India has the sovereign right to jointly decide,
including though joint consultations, the verification procedure. Any verification has to follow a request; it has to be on a
mutually-acceptable date and at a mutually acceptable venue. There is no provision for on-site inspections or granting of
access to any military site or sensitive areas. This is the position with regard to end-use monitoring.

Madam Speaker, Shri Yashwant Sinha brought up the issue of climate change as if we have changed goal-posts. There is
nothing of that sort. There was a meeting in Italy along with the G-8 meeting of major economies of the world. India was invited
to that meeting where 17 other countries were present. | should, however, mention that the Major Economic Forum Declaration
adopted at L'Aquila is not a declaration of Climate Change policy by India, nor is it a bilateral declaration between India and
another country or a group of countries. It is a declaration that represents a shared view among 17 developed and developing
countries, the latter category including China, South Africa, Brazil, Indonesia, and Mexico. Therefore, the formulations are
necessarily generally worded to reflect different approaches and positions of a fairly diverse group of countries.

It has been argued in some quarters that the reference in the Declaration to a scientific view that global temperature
increase should not exceed two degrees centigrade, represents a significant shift in India's position on climate change, and
that it may oblige us to accept emission reduction targets. This is a one-sided and misleading interpretation of the contents of
the Declaration.

It is India's view, which has been consistently voiced in all world fora, that global warming is taking place and taking
place here and now and that its adverse consequences will impact most heavily on developing countries like India. The
reference to a two degree centigrade increase as a threshold reflects a prevalent scientific opinion internationally and only
reinforces what India has been saying about the dangers from global warming. True, this is the first time that India has
accepted a reference to two degree centigrade in a document as a possible threshold guiding global action, but this is entirely
in line with our stated position on global warming.

Drawing attention to the seriousness of global warming does not automatically translate into a compulsion on the part of India
or other developing countries, represented in the Major Economics Forum, to accept emission reduction obligations. | should
like to mention in this matter that our position and the Chinese position are nearly identical, and we have been coordinating our
position with that country on this important issue.



Quite to the contrary, the greater the threat from global warming, the greater the responsibility of developed countries to
take on ambitious emission reduction targets. That is why, 37 developing countries, including India, China, Brazil, South
Africa, and Indonesia have tabled a submission at the multilateral negotiations asking the developed countries to accept
reduction targets of at least 40 per cent by 2020 with 1990 as the baseline.

Madam, the Major Economies Forum Declaration reaffirms the principles and provisions of the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change, in particular, the principle of equity and of common but differentiated
responsibilities and respective capabilities.[R31]

As is well-known, the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change imposes emission reduction targets only on
developed countries. Developing countries are committed to sustainable development. The full incremental cost of any
mitigation by them must be fully compensated by transfers of financial and technological resources from developed countries.
This is fully reflected in the Major Economies Forum Declaration.

Furthermore, at the insistence of India, supported by other developing countries, the Declaration includes an explicit
acknowledgement that in undertaking climate change action, the 'first and overriding priority' of developing countries will be
their pursuit of the goals of economic and social development and poverty eradication. This should allay any apprehension that
India will be under pressure to undertake commitments that may undermine her economic growth prospects.

Madam, with regard to the G-8 decision on enrichment and re-processing technologies, some Members have raised the issue
of the Statement issued by G-8 countries on Non-Proliferation at the L'Aquila Summit in Italy earlier in July, and the reference
made to the transfer of enrichment and re-processing items and technology. The concern appears to be as to whether an
effort is being made by certain countries to prevent the transfer of enrichment and re-processing items and technology to non-
NPT countries, that is, countries like India who have not signed the Non Proliferation Treaty.

Madam Speaker, our Government is fully committed to the achievement of full international civil nuclear cooperation.
Consistent with this objective in September last year, India secured a clean, and | repeat we secured a clean exemption from
the Nuclear Suppliers Group, one that was India specific. At that time also, there were attempts to make a distinction but we
got a clean exemption which means that the Nuclear Suppliers Group consisting of 45 countries has agreed to transfer all
technologies which are consistent with their national law.

The 'Statement on Civil Nuclear Cooperation with India' approved by the Nuclear Suppliers Group on September 6, 2008
contains India's reciprocal commitments and actions in exchange for access to international civil nuclear cooperation. It is our
expectation that any future decisions of the Nuclear Suppliers Group relating to the transfer of enrichment and re-processing
item and technology would take into account the special status accorded to India by the NSG. The NSG has given us this
clean exemption knowing full well that India is not a signatory to the NPT.

Prohibition by the NSG of such transfers would require a consensus among all the 46 countries. That does not exist at present.
The exemption given to India by the NSG provides for consultations and we will hence remain engaged with that body so that
any decisions take into account the special status accorded to India by the global nuclear community.

As far as G-8 is concerned, the fact is that we have no civil nuclear cooperation agreement with the G-8 Bloc per se. We
have, however, signed bilateral agreements with France, Russia and the United States. [H32]

| said this before and | repeat it. When | read about this G-8 Statement, | raised this matter with the French President. He was
gracious enough to tell me that as far as France is concerned, there would be no restriction on the transfer of these
technologies. In fact, he volunteered. He said: "If you want me to go public, even | am willing to do that." So, my understanding
of this area is that there is no consensus in the Nuclear Suppliers Group to debar India from access to the reprocessing and
enrichment technology.

Madam, in the course of discussion, some hon. Members have raised the issue of our accepting pre-conditions for transfer of
enrichment and reprocessing items and technology. | wish to, once again, assure Shri Yashwant Sinha that pending global
nuclear disarmament, there is no question of India joining the Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty as a non-nuclear weapon
State.

I would also like to clarify that the transfer of enrichment and reprocessing items and technology has no bearing
whatsoever on India's upfront entittement to reprocess foreign origin spent fuel and the use of such fuel in our own
safeguarded facilities.

Finally, Madam, | would like to bring to the attention of this august House that India has full mastery of the entire nuclear fuel



cycle, and this includes enrichment and reprocessing technology. We have a well-entrenched E&R infrastructure of our own.
Our domestic three-stage nuclear power programme is entirely indigenous and self-sustaining. Our indigenous Fast Breeder
Reactor Programme and linked technology put us in the league of those very few nations, which today possess cutting-edge
technologies. The transfer of enrichment and reprocessing items and technology to India as part of full international civil
nuclear cooperation, would be an additionality to accelerate our three-stage programme.

Madam, | believe, | have rightly answered all the major points. The hon. External Affairs Minister would sum up the debate. He
would deal with other aspects.
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DR. MANMOHAN SINGH: Madam, | would like to say that there are no bilateral negotiations taking place outside the framework
of the United Nations Framework Convention. There are discussions. When we have bilateral meetings, there are discussions
on many subjects. But these are not negotiations. The negotiating forum is and will be the Framework Convention, the
Copenhagen process. That is the correct way of looking at it. Whatever we discuss in the G-8, it is all designed to explore
various options to build the consensus. These are not negotiating forums at all.

Now, with regard to the E&R facilities, the 123 Agreement provides for a dedicated re-processing facility. For that,
negotiations have already started. There was a time limit by which those negotiations have to be completed. They are moving
in the right direction. So, it is not at all, | think, true to say that this re-processing facility will face any difficulty. First of all, |
am not sure that the 45-Member Nuclear Suppliers' Group will endorse what the G-8 decide. Attempts were made in the past
also. But | think there are many people who believe that a country like India has to be treated differently and it is a source of
strength that this recognition prevented a consensus which would have been injurious to us.

SHRI BASU DEB ACHARIA (BANKURA): Madam Speaker, the pillar of our foreign policy, which was referred to by Shri
Yashwant Sinha, started cracking when BJP was in power. ...(Interruptions)

MADAM SPEAKER: Hon. Members, please take your seats.

SHRI BASU DEB ACHARIA: Madam, we have seen how a Cabinet Minister was secretly meeting with a junior Minister of
United States of America, Mr. Strobe Talbot one day in London, other day in Washington, in New York and then in other

places. We have seen also the consensus which we have in regard to our foreign policy, in regard to our signing of CTBT and
NPT. There is an attempt to change our foreign policy. We have seen when Iraq was attacked by America, the Government of
the day was reluctant to condemn the brutal attack on Iraq.[m34]

We had to stall the proceedings of both the Houses for three days. You were in the Rajya Sabha at that point of time. We had
to stop the House, disrupt the proceedings of the House for three days, stall the House rather for three or four days and then
the Government agreed to bring a soft resolution not "condemn" but "deplore". We had the apprehension. That was why in the



Common Minimum Programme of UPA-I, in the paragraph on foreign policy, it was categorically mentioned that our foreign
policy would be an independent foreign policy and our relations with the United States of America will be a friendly relation, but
it will not be a strategic relation.

The hon. Prime Minister, after returning from Italy and Egypt, made a statement in this House, the very day he returned from
Italy and Egypt, where he said in the last but one paragraph and | quote :

"India seeks cooperative relation with Pakistan and engagement is the only way forward to realize the vision of a
stable and prosperous South Asia living in peace and amity."

| agree with this contention. But, in the preceding paragraph the hon. Prime Minister said :

"The starting point of any meaningful dialogue with Pakistan is a fulfillment of their commitment in letter and spirit,
not to allow their territory to be used in any manner for terrorist activities against India.”

Then he said :

"The action on terrorism should not be linked to composite dialogue and, therefore, cannot wait other
developments. It was agreed that the two countries will share real-time, credible and actionable information on
any future terrorist threats."

There is a contradiction in the statement itself. We also agree that there is a need for dialogue because there are outstanding
issues which are to be resolved. But the action against the terrorists should also be taken and pressure should be put on

Pakistan to take action against the terrorists. The perpetrators of crime that was committed on 26t November last year should
be brought to justice. But how?

When the hon. Prime Minister said that "the starting point of any meaningful dialogue with Pakistan is a fulfillment of their
commitment in letter and spirit, not to allow their territory to be used in any manner for terrorist activity", and then delinking of
action against the terrorists, the action on terrorism not to be linked with composite dialogue, these are contradictory. [k35]

This has been done under pressure of the United States of America. Then, Balochistan has also been brought in the
agreement, in the Joint Statement. It has also been done under pressure of the USA.

Madam, the Prime Minister, while intervening, has stated that this issue was raised on the floor of this House. When in our
House and the other House, we discussed the Indo-US Nuclear Deal, a number of times, we had expressed our apprehension.
The Prime Minister a number of times stated, and today also he said, that it marks the end of India's decades of isolation from
nuclear mainstream and technical denial regime. He has said that in this House also, but we have also pointed out a number of
times that the waiver is not a clean waiver. It is stated not only in the G-8 meeting now, but earlier also, that the waiver that our
Government claims, is not a clean waiver because we cannot separate Hyde Act and 123 Agreement. When the Prime
Minister was speaking today, he has expressed his doubt whether all the 45 NSG countries will agree to that proposal or not. If
the position was what the Prime Minister has said today that there is on condition in regard to import of ENR technology, how
was this issue raised in the G-8 meeting? If no such condition has been imposed by USA that enrichment technology will not
be available to our country even after we sign nuclear agreement, how was this issue raised in G-8 meeting? Not only the USA
has categorically stated that although the agreement has been signed, it will be confined only to reactor and nuclear fuel, but
the USA will also ask all other NSG countries not to supply this technology to our country. So, there will not be available any
enrichment technology to our country.

What will happen to our research and development in the field of nuclear technology? We want to reach to the third
phase — from uranium to plutonium to thorium. What is the intention of the USA behind keeping our country dependent for
supply of nuclear fuel on other countries?[s36]

MADAM SPEAKER: Hon. Members, this discussion will continue tomorrow.



18.00 hrs.
MADAM SPEAKER: Now, matters of urgent public importance under 'Zero Hour'. Shri R. K. Singh Patel.
...(Interruptions)
SHRI GURUDAS DASGUPTA (GHATAL): Madam Speaker, can | point out one thing? ...(Interruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: Please do not disturb. This is the '"Zero Hour".
...(Interruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: Shri Patel, why do not you start speaking?
...(Interruptions)
SHRI GURUDAS DASGUPTA : Madam, can | point out one thing? Further continuation of this discussion is &€} (Interruptions)
MADAM SPEAKER: This will not go on record.

&€ (Interruptions) &€



